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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're not quite

          3  at a quorum, but we will have a quorum before we

          4  take any votes.

          5                 My name is David Weprin. I'm the

          6  Chairman of the City Council Finance Committee. I'll

          7  introduce the members that are here so they can get

          8  gold stars for coming.

          9                 We have Council Member Robert Jackson

         10  from Manhattan; Deputy Majority Leader Bill Perkins

         11  from Manhattan; we have Council Member Eric Martin

         12  Dilan from Brooklyn; Council Member Margarita Lopez

         13  from Manhattan; Majority Leader Council Member Joel

         14  Rivera from the Bronx; Council Member Albert Vann

         15  from Brooklyn; and Council Member Oliver Koppell

         16  from the Bronx.

         17                 Today we will be considering four

         18  budget modifications, two of which are related to

         19  the capital budget. The first reflecting the Mayor's

         20  capitulation on the City Council's request for

         21  increased education funding, and the second which

         22  allows City Council projects to be moved into proper

         23  budget lines; and two, for the operating budget.

         24                 The Expense and Revenue budget

         25  modification that is reflective of the Mayor's

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  January Plan. Additionally, we'll be authorizing the

          3  City Council budget for Fiscal 2006, and voting on a

          4  local law increasing the budget for a bid and one

          5  special assessment district.

          6                 The first capital budget modification

          7  as stated above increases the City funding for

          8  education so that the five-year capital plan that

          9  the City Council adopted in June can remain intact,

         10  despite the loss of State funding.

         11                 This $1.3 billion increase will

         12  restore many vital capital projects affecting

         13  hundreds of thousands of school children, and

         14  represents a successful culmination of this

         15  Council's unified effort to keep education as our

         16  number one priority, despite the state's continued

         17  failure to meet its court-ordered responsibility to

         18  the children of the City of New York.

         19                 The second capital budget

         20  modification allows some of the City Council

         21  projects to be transferred into budget lines that

         22  will facilitate agencies moving ahead with their

         23  approval.

         24                 The Expense modification, MN 3,

         25  reflects new needs in Fiscal 2005, primarily in
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          2  Medicaid and Education, and an agency reduction

          3  program to fund these new needs.

          4                 The general reserve is also being

          5  reduced and used to increase the budget

          6  stabilization account for prepayments of Fiscal 2006

          7  expenditures, decreasing next year's budget gap.

          8                 Revenue modification seeks to

          9  increase revenues in the net amount of $1.2 billion

         10  for Fiscal 2005.

         11                 This amount includes an additional

         12  $915 million in tax revenue, an increase in

         13  miscellaneous revenue sources of $140 million,

         14  savings in prior years payable of $200 million and

         15  decreases in anticipated federal aid of $15 million.

         16                 This revenue modification provides

         17  for an increase of $905 million to the budget

         18  stabilization account in the Fiscal 2005 debt

         19  service budget, which along with the Expense

         20  modification, MN 3, and added to the October plan

         21  amount of $574 million, brings the balance of the

         22  account to $1.7 billion.

         23                 The Fiscal 2005 budget stabilization

         24  account balance will be used to prepay a portion of

         25  Fiscal 2006 long-term debt service and other
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          2  permissible prepayments of Fiscal 2006 expenses. In

          3  this revenue budget modification, and separate from

          4  the contribution to the BSA Balance, $150 million is

          5  being allocated to prepay Fiscal 2006 transit

          6  subsidy and $150 million is being allocated to

          7  prepay a portion of the Fiscal 2006 subsidy to the

          8  Health and Hospitals Corporation.

          9                 Together the prepayments provide over

         10  $2 billion in budget relief in Fiscal 2006. Now

         11  we're talking real money. Just seeing if you're

         12  awake.

         13                 Today we'll also consider another

         14  local law, which would authorize budget increases

         15  for one Business Improvement District, and one

         16  special assessment district, the 82nd Business

         17  Improvement District in Queens, and the Jamaica

         18  Center, SAD, Special Assessment District, in Queens.

         19                 The statute authorizing the

         20  establishment of BIDs and amendments to the plans by

         21  which they operate provides that this local law can

         22  be adopted if the Council makes the following

         23  findings:

         24                 1) That it is in the public interest

         25  to authorize the increases.
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          2                 2) That the tax and debt limit set

          3  out in the BID laws will not be exceeded.

          4                 3) A notice of proposed budget

          5  increases must be published in a newspaper.

          6                 In addition, although the BID law

          7  only requires notice of this action by publication,

          8  we informed the Small Business Services at the

          9  hearing in August that we would like to see notices

         10  mailed to all property owners in the BID and Special

         11  Assessment District of the Proposed Budget increases

         12  and the date for today's hearing.

         13                 So, today we will only consider

         14  granting the increases if Small Business Services is

         15  a test, that they have mailed the agreed-upon notice

         16  to all property owners in the district.

         17                 Finally, we'll be voting on the City

         18  Council's budget for Fiscal 2006.

         19                 This budget is virtually unchanged

         20  from last year's budget with only a one percent

         21  increase.

         22                 We've been joined by Council Member

         23  Lew Fidler from Brooklyn, Minority Leader Council

         24  Member Jim Oddo from Staten Island, Council Member

         25  Helen Sears from Queens.
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          2                 We keep getting more members, but we

          3  still -- and Council Member Dennis Gallagher from

          4  Queens.

          5                 I'm now going to call upon Deputy

          6  Commissioner George Glatter from the Department of

          7  Small Business Services, to talk about the BIDs and

          8  the Special Assessment.

          9                 Are we going to do that first?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Thank

         11  you, Chairman Weprin.

         12                 Good morning, Chairman Weprin and

         13  members of the Finance Committee. I am George

         14  Glatter, Assistant Commissioner at the Department of

         15  Small Business Services.

         16                 SBS supports the law providing an

         17  increase in the amount to be expended in the 82nd

         18  Street Business Improvement District and the Jamaica

         19  Center Small Special Assessment District.

         20                 As required by law, the two BIDs

         21  published notice of the public hearing at least once

         22  in a local newspaper having circulation in the

         23  districts, specifying the time when and the place

         24  where the hearing would be held, and stating the

         25  proposed amount to be expended annually.
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          2                 In addition, the BIDs certify that

          3  they have mailed a letter to property owners

          4  informing them about the proposed assessment

          5  increase, and the time and place of this public

          6  hearing.

          7                 The two Queens BIDs requesting

          8  increases in annual expenditures desire to further

          9  expend, reinforce and strengthen existing core

         10  services currently provided in the business

         11  districts.

         12                 The BIDs wish to increase the amount

         13  to be expended annually beginning on July 1st, 2004.

         14  They are as follows:

         15                 The 82nd Street BID from $187,000 to

         16  $194,900, and the Jamaica Center Mall Special

         17  Assessment District from $590,000 to $737,500.

         18                 The City's BIDs supplement City

         19  Sanitation and Public Safety Services, promote

         20  business through marketing initiatives and public

         21  events, enhance the City's physical environment

         22  through streetscape improvement projects and engage

         23  local youth internship programs.

         24                 In addition, BIDs partnership with

         25  City government to help create jobs, improve the
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          2  quality of life for New Yorkers and visitors, and

          3  enhance the City's tax base and strengthen the

          4  City's local economy.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Did you send out

          7  the requested notice to all property owners?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes.

          9  All property owners were notified by the respected

         10  BIDs that went out on March 11th and 12th.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any questions for

         12  Mr. Glatter?

         13                 Okay, seeing none, we're going to

         14  hold off on voting. We're going to couple these

         15  votes along with the other votes a little later.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 We've been joined by Council Member

         18  Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn.

         19                 Council Member Sears.

         20                 Council Member Sears, did you have a

         21  question?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Mr. Curry is

         23  here for the 82nd Street BID, would there be any

         24  comments from him?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Would he like to
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          2  testify?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes. Mr. Curry?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: He didn't fill

          5  out a form.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Oh, okay.

          7                 Yes, he would like to testify.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Let him

          9  come forward now.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. And if I

         11  just may have a few words on the 82nd Street BID?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: They do a

         14  wonderful job. They're one of the first BIDs in the

         15  City of New York, and certainly I would encourage my

         16  colleagues to approve their budget. It's amazing

         17  what they do with very limited monies, and are very

         18  careful about that. So, I thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         19  for having that on today's agenda.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Sure.

         21                 Just state your name and position for

         22  the record.

         23                 MR. CURRY: Ernest Curry. The increase

         24  which is being requested is primarily for coverage

         25  on the weekends. The BID is on a very busy
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          2  thoroughfare, it's a subway stop of 82nd Street, and

          3  it has tremendous amount of traffic. The budget had

          4  never provided for personnel to come on the weekend

          5  and work with the police and/or the Sanitation

          6  Department to keep an eye on the happenings on the

          7  weekends. And that's really all my testimony. I'd

          8  like to thank the Council, and thank Council Member

          9  Helen Sears for allowing me to testify today.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Any

         11  questions for Mr. Curry?

         12                 Okay, thank you very much.

         13                 MR. CURRY: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're going to

         15  vote a little later.

         16                 Can I have Matt Farrell and Joyce

         17  Singerman from the Finance staff to talk about our

         18  Council Budget?

         19                 Why don't you start with a little

         20  summary and then we'll have questions. I know some

         21  members have questions.

         22                 MR. FARRELL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 My name is Matt Farrell, Director of

         24  Administrative Services. Joyce Singerman, our Fiscal

         25  Officer, has a statement.
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          2                 MS. SINGERMAN: Good morning, Chairman

          3  Weprin and members of the Finance Committee. I'm

          4  Joyce Singerman, Fiscal Officer, Administrative

          5  Services Division of the City Council.

          6                 We are before you today with the

          7  Council's Fiscal Year 2006 Operating Budget.

          8                 This budget is $47,411,283, an

          9  increase of $675,770 from our Fiscal Year 2005

         10  adopted budget.

         11                 This increase consists of two

         12  components, rent at 250 Broadway, and an increase

         13  for Council Member Operating Budget.

         14                 First, because New York City Council

         15  has reached the fifth year of its lease at 250

         16  Broadway, there are automatic rent increases, as

         17  there are for all long-term commercial leases. The

         18  $513,359 in U of A 200 is to fund this increase,

         19  enhance security, and operating and tax escalations.

         20                 $162,411 in U of A 001 will cover the

         21  cost of increasing each Council Member's Budget by

         22  $3,185.

         23                 If you have any questions, we'd be

         24  happy to answer them at this time.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I think Council

          3  Member Dilan had a statement he wanted to make at

          4  this time.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chair. No questions for this panel, but directly

          7  related to this subject, while I intend to vote for

          8  and approve of the Fiscal Year 2006 operating

          9  budget, I think the Finance staff and Joyce

         10  Singerman and Matt Farrell has done a great job, but

         11  I guess for the convenience of every member of this

         12  Committee, and I'll do so later for every member of

         13  the Council, I've handed each and every one of you a

         14  two-sheet pamphlet where the Charter states that

         15  members of the Council or the City Council in

         16  general is charged responsibly for oversight on

         17  capital projects, including the scope of major

         18  projects that are before every committee of the

         19  Council.

         20                 In light of some of the major

         21  projects that could be coming down the road,

         22  specifically this capital budget shows a potential

         23  increase of approximate size of about $37 billion

         24  with potentially, or we are looking at a $13 billion

         25  capital improvement budget for schools, potentially
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          2  300 million for the Jets Stadium, the City portion,

          3  potential and capital improvements for the Nets,

          4  regardless of what any individual member's position

          5  is on the stadiums, I feel that the Finance staff

          6  generally is underfunded, and I feel that in light

          7  of these projects coming down the pike, while they

          8  do a great job, our Finance staff, we would need to

          9  bolster our staff to conduct proper oversight of

         10  these projects that are coming, potentially coming

         11  down the pike.

         12                 It's our duty to oversee scope of

         13  projects, and I would say in my time here, I don't

         14  think the Council has done the best job that it

         15  potentially could and that's because of the lack of

         16  staffing.

         17                 Now, the staff that we have is great,

         18  they do a great job, and I'm sure each and every one

         19  of us agree, but with the type of dollars that are

         20  coming down the pike in the future, I think we need

         21  to bolster this part of our agency to provide

         22  greater oversight for public dollars in the future,

         23  and to hold the Administration and agencies

         24  accountable on how they use these public dollars to

         25  make sure they don't overspend.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. And I

          4  want to reiterate the hard work that the Finance

          5  staff does and the round-the-clock hours that they

          6  keep, especially around budget time, and they're

          7  clearly overworked and underpaid, and that's

          8  certainly a discussion for another day.

          9                 I just want to reiterate, and Ms.

         10  Singerman, if you want to just clarify that, or

         11  indicate that that's accurate, that the 3,185

         12  increase per member is really just a reflection of

         13  the two percent DC 37 agreement, which was made with

         14  DC 37 covered union members.

         15                 Of course, our City Council employees

         16  are not covered by DC 37, but they're clearly

         17  hard-working City employees, and we thought it was

         18  fair that they get a comparable raise to the DC 37

         19  negotiated agreements, so the 3,185 per member would

         20  reflect that two percent for office staff; is that

         21  correct?

         22                 MS. SINGERMAN: That is correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         24                 Any questions from other members?

         25                 Okay, thank you.
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          2                 We're going to now discuss the

          3  various budget modifications, and, of course, the

          4  most significant one is the $1.3 billion restoration

          5  to the Department of Education Capital Budget, and

          6  that clearly was something that was started by the

          7  City Council under the Speaker's leadership, and all

          8  of our leadership in hammering home how important it

          9  was that the City $1.3 billion be restored, despite

         10  the fact that Albany did not come through in this

         11  fiscal year with the 1.3 billion; nevertheless, we

         12  urge the Mayor to make up for the State shortfall,

         13  not to let the State off the hook, because the state

         14  sill owes the money and, of course, the Campaign for

         15  Fiscal Equity lawsuit Court of Appeals Decision

         16  reflects that, so we're optimistic that that money

         17  will be coming down the pike.

         18                 However, since the $2.6 billion

         19  capital budget for schools for the education was in

         20  the current budget, and 1.3 billion of that was a

         21  City portion and 1.3 billion was a State portion,

         22  since it looks like the State is not going to come

         23  through this fiscal year, we did not want our school

         24  children to suffer at our schools that are in

         25  terrible infrastructure situations, in need of
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          2  repair, that that cannot weigh. So we urge the Mayor

          3  to restore the 1.3 billion from the rest of the

          4  five-year capital plan for the City allocation, and

          5  worry about making it up when we get the State money

          6  later on, so we recommended that he frontload the

          7  entire 1.3 billion, so we would have the full budget

          8  allocation of 2.6 billion for the current fiscal

          9  year, and at our urging the Mayor did do that just

         10  last week, and we applaud him for doing that. We're

         11  not going to take that away from him, although

         12  clearly the City Council played a very significant

         13  role in that process.

         14                 And to elaborate on that and to

         15  discuss the more technical budget modifications that

         16  sometimes get glossed over.

         17                 I'm going to call upon Larian Angelo

         18  and her tremendous Finance staff, some members of

         19  her Finance staff, some members of her Finance

         20  staff, that were referred to by Council Member Dilan

         21  and myself as being overworked and underpaid.

         22                 And if you could just all identify

         23  yourselves and titles for the record.

         24                 Ms. Angelo.

         25                 MS. ANGELO: Larian Angelo, Finance
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          2  Director.

          3                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Frank Tramontano,

          4  First Deputy Director.

          5                 MS. EMANUEL: Staci Emanuel, Deputy

          6  Director.

          7                 MR. ZANGERLE: Pablo Zangerle, Deputy

          8  Director for Revenue.

          9                 MS. ANGELO: Good morning.

         10                 Today you have before you four budget

         11  mods. This may set a record, I don't think we've

         12  ever done four in one day.

         13                 The first budget mod, taking them in

         14  no particular order. The first budget mod is a

         15  revenue budget mod. It will recognize approximately

         16  $1.2 billion in new revenue, about 950 million of

         17  that will be put into the budget stabilization

         18  account, 150 million will be used to prepay the

         19  transit subsidy, 150 million will be used to prepay

         20  the HHC subsidy.

         21                 The second mod is an expense mod that

         22  is net zero. Essentially about 299 million in new

         23  needs will be funded with a reduction in the general

         24  reserve of 335 million and an agency program that

         25  totals 414 million, 128 million of which

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  approximately are revenue initiatives within the

          3  agency.

          4                 There are also before you two capital

          5  budget mods. One capital budget mod is essentially a

          6  housekeeping mod, it's a net zero mod. Some projects

          7  will be moved across and within agencies to be in

          8  more appropriate places in the budget.

          9                 And, finally, a capital budget

         10  modification. This relates back to the letter all of

         11  the Council Members sent asking the Mayor for a

         12  budget modification to add $1.3 billion back into

         13  the budget for this year for education capital.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. I believe

         15  Council Member Oddo had a question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Larian, let me

         17  just make sure that all of us are on the same page,

         18  and at least I understand what we're doing today.

         19                 We are recognizing 1.2 billion with a

         20  B, billion dollars in additional revenue going back

         21  from when to when?

         22                 MS. ANGELO: This is additional

         23  revenue between November and today.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, from

         25  November, December, January, February, March, in
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          2  five months the City has taken in $1.2 billion more

          3  than we anticipated.

          4                 MS. ANGELO: That's correct.

          5                 The bulk of it is an additional tax

          6  revenue. But I'll turn to Pablo to give you the

          7  outline, if you'd like.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I'm just looking

          9  at real property transfers is a biggy, 287 million,

         10  the PIT gross, 268 million, the GCT gross, 150 --

         11  and GCT is --

         12                 MS. ANGELO: General Corporation Tax.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

         14                 Larian, let me ask you a question,

         15  and admittedly it's sort of a hypothetical.

         16                 Let's say I was fighting for a

         17  particular service in my home borough. Let's just

         18  say a firehouse --

         19                 MS. ANGELO: Just for argument's sake?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Just for

         21  argument's sake, to make the picture complete, let's

         22  say it's a firehouse on the south shore of Staten

         23  Island.

         24                 And the Administration said to me,

         25  and to other elected officials, well, when you show
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          2  us where the money is, we'll give you that service;

          3  is it fair to say that we could use a fraction of

          4  this $1.2 billion to fund that hypothetical,

          5  theoretical fire house on the south shore?

          6                 MS. ANGELO: Essentially the

          7  additional revenue brought in is being used to help

          8  balance the budget in Fiscal '06.

          9                 And so when that budget is taken up,

         10  clearly there will be discussions about how the

         11  entire $50 billion budget will be allocated.

         12                 A couple of warnings. You're pointing

         13  out that the economy is very robust, and in fact,

         14  tax revenue increases are across the board, all the

         15  taxes are strong, which is a very encouraging sign.

         16                 One of the problems, though, in

         17  Fiscal '06 is that that budget is balanced on the

         18  assumption of $750 million in State and federal aid,

         19  500 million of which comes from New York State.

         20  That's an outstanding that will have to be faced,

         21  depending on what the State budget does.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Let me just say

         23  that I absolutely understand your point that in '06

         24  we have a budget gap. I think we have that budget

         25  gap because we haven't really taken the fundamental
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          2  steps to address the structural imbalance that we

          3  have. And I know that the tendency for legislators

          4  of both parties when they see quote/unquote more

          5  money is to spend it. But theoretically, if the

          6  administration chose to, there is nothing

          7  prohibiting them from taking a fraction of this 1.2

          8  billion and spending it on a City service, fire or

          9  anything else.

         10                 MS. ANGELO: When the Executive Budget

         11  comes out, which will be early in May, we will do

         12  the ordinary budget process, and the Council and

         13  individual members will have projects and issues

         14  they think are vital and they will struggle

         15  vigorously, as they always do, with the

         16  Administration to fund those.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Let me ask you

         18  one other question.

         19                 You said a portion of this money is

         20  going to be spent, $150 million, prepaying the HHC

         21  subsidy.

         22                 Could you just give me a few more

         23  details about what the HHC subsidy is all about?

         24                 MS. ANGELO: The HHC subsidy has

         25  varied at various times, depending on
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          2  Administrations. Until last year, the HHC subsidy

          3  actually had dwindled to, correct me Staci,

          4  basically zero. But HHC, as most other hospitals,

          5  have fundamental problems, in that Medicaid

          6  reimbursements tend not to cover the entire cost of

          7  caring for Medicaid eligible patients, and on top of

          8  that, HHC turns no one away.

          9                 So that HHC was looking at a

         10  fundamental and structural gap in its budget, which

         11  the Mayor stepped up to last year, and offered 200

         12  million in additional subsidy.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The reason why I

         14  ask about the HHC subsidy, is that it just strikes

         15  me as inconsistent that a few weeks ago, maybe a

         16  little bit more than that, this Council voted on a

         17  Land Use item having to do with HHC, which

         18  essentially had to do with them freezing meals, and

         19  it was an option that HHC chose to save two to

         20  three-million dollars a year, and HHC had a couple

         21  of other options, and one was to completely

         22  outsource and I'll say that dirty little word,

         23  privatize that operation, and it could have saved

         24  anywhere from 80 million going up to the $115

         25  million a year it will cost to prepare foods in its
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          2  hospitals, and it chose not to do that.

          3                 And, listen, that would have affected

          4  1,400 people. And I have feelings, I have

          5  sensitivities, it was 1,400 New Yorkers, but they

          6  made an easier choice, and it just strikes me that

          7  we're going to give them $150 million that we can be

          8  spending either paying down debt or going to the

          9  budget stabilization account, or providing other

         10  services.

         11                 And they took the easy way out. When

         12  I hear people talking about the possibility of

         13  laying off police officers, they chose to protect

         14  cooks and dieticians at HHC, yet taxpayer dollars

         15  are going to pay the subsidy. And I just, I'm amazed

         16  that that gets no attention in the press and nobody

         17  seems to care. But we will spend weeks in the coming

         18  months knocking our heads out to affect maybe $200

         19  million or $250 million, if we're lucky, in the

         20  budget negotiations, yet, we'll give HHC $150

         21  million now and not even blink an eye.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we've been

         23  joined by Council Member Christine Quinn from

         24  Manhattan, Council Member Eric Gioia from Queens,

         25  Council Member Mike McMahon from Staten Island.
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          2                 Council Member Fidler, you have a

          3  question?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, one or

          5  two.

          6                 First of all, I just want to be clear

          7  about, and don't worry, I'm not going to be the hump

          8  I was the last time you were sitting there and I was

          9  sitting here.

         10                 MS. ANGELO: You're never that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Just, you

         12  know, want to ease the tension level.

         13                 The capital modifications don't

         14  affect when any projects are being done, the one

         15  that's budget neutral?

         16                 MR. ZANGERLE: The Capital Budget

         17  modification for education is adding --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes. No, I

         19  understand that. There were two, and one is budget

         20  neutral.

         21                 MR. ZANGERLE: Yes, that's correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, I don't

         23  have to look to see the Parks Project is here and

         24  now it's here. Everything is --

         25                 MR. ZANGERLE: It's just to move them
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          2  into budget lines that will facilitate them

          3  happening.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

          5                 My second question is entirely

          6  related to that and goes to one of my favorite

          7  topics. The District Attorneys' revenue enforcement

          8  initiative, and I was trying to total up the amount

          9  of money that's being put back into District

         10  Attorneys' budgets. Looks to be about 12 million.

         11  How did OMB arrive at that number?

         12                 MS. EMANUEL: What they did was, the

         13  DAs are able to buy back $16 million in restorations

         14  through the Revenue Enhancement Initiative. And what

         15  OMB did is advanced 80 percent of that. So that

         16  number should be 80 percent of that 16 million.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And why did

         18  they pick 80 percent? I mean, are they tracking the

         19  revenue that DAs are bringing in?

         20                 I mean, you know, do we throw a dart

         21  at the wall?

         22                 MS. EMANUEL: I don't know what the

         23  rationale was for picking the 80 percent, but they

         24  took the 80 percent, plus what the Council gave as a

         25  restoration, and they figured that that would get
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          2  them going for the year, and once they see if the

          3  DAs reach their revenue target, if they do reach

          4  their revenue target, they will then advance them

          5  the other 20 percent, which you would see in June,

          6  the last budget mod.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You threw a

          8  couple of words in there very, very quickly, plus

          9  the Council restoration.

         10                 MS. EMANUEL: Okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: What does the

         12  Council restoration have to do with the Revenue

         13  Enhancement Program?

         14                 I mean, I thought our restoration was

         15  our restoration.

         16                 MS. EMANUEL: No, it is. It is our

         17  restoration. What the City did was they gave 80

         18  percent of the peg restoration, which was 16

         19  million, and then they wanted to wait and see how

         20  the revenues were coming in, if they met their peg

         21  target they will give them the other 20 percent in

         22  the next budget modification.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Just to be

         24  clear, we gave them a restoration. They got that

         25  July 1, didn't they?
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          2                 MS. EMANUEL: Right. And they're

          3  getting the 80 percent of the 16 million now in

          4  April.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: All right.

          6                 MS. EMANUEL: In March.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And when are

          8  they going to look to see whether or not DAs have

          9  met their quota of revenue prosecution?

         10                 MS. EMANUEL: We may know more by

         11  Exec, the Executive Budget.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And, so, when

         13  would you expect them to ask for a modification so

         14  the DAs can get the rest of their payroll?

         15                 MS. EMANUEL: If they've met their peg

         16  revenue target, we will see the 20 percent when the

         17  Exec Plan comes out in April, the rest of the money.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Wait. No, the

         19  Exec Plan is for next year's money. This is this

         20  year's money, right?

         21                 MS. EMANUEL: When we get the

         22  financial plan at Exec, they also make adjustments

         23  to the Fiscal 2005 budget. When the Executive Budget

         24  for '06 comes out, it's a four-year plan, so they

         25  adjust '05 and then you have '06, '07, '08, '09.

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, the best

          3  district attorneys can possibly expect is that some

          4  time after the Exec Budget, which will be in April,

          5  we'll pass another modification, and they'll get the

          6  rest of the 20 percent some time in May, just in

          7  time for the end of the Fiscal Year?

          8                 MS. EMANUEL: Right. If they meet

          9  their revenue targets.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And their

         11  revenue target is actually a target for money for

         12  them to collect through the end of June, right?

         13                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, how will

         15  we know in April if they're going to make their

         16  target in June?

         17                 MS. EMANUEL: Well, OMB will be

         18  looking at the numbers and do a projection on what

         19  they're likely to meet between now and June, and --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And if the DAs

         21  are falling short, they'll just have to go out there

         22  and prosecute some more rich people really quickly,

         23  is that --

         24                 MS. EMANUEL: If they're falling short

         25  they won't get the 20 percent, right? Because it's
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          2  based on the revenues they're bringing in.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And then

          4  they'll have to lay off prosecutors.

          5                 Look, you understand -- I mean, you

          6  know, the person that should be sitting here

          7  answering these questions is Mr. Page, and I

          8  certainly directed these questions to him when he

          9  was before this Committee for the Preliminary Budget

         10  hearing. I just at every opportunity want to point

         11  out to every member of this Council how outrageous a

         12  way this is to fund a criminal justice system, that

         13  the idea of incentivising District Attorneys to

         14  prosecute certain people so that they cannot have to

         15  fire their staff, is just in principle absurd, all

         16  right? And there's absolutely no reason whatsoever

         17  that they shouldn't be given this, all of this

         18  money, which is obviously available on the promise

         19  that they're going to prosecute people who deserve

         20  to be prosecuted and that they're going to be given

         21  their revenue at the beginning of the year, just

         22  like every other reasonable agency, they can plan

         23  budget and function in a normal way. And, so,

         24  really, that's the point of these questions and I am

         25  going to ask this Committee and my colleagues on the
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          2  Council to reject the budget as it comes forward

          3  next year, all right? If it contains this

          4  ridiculous, ass-backwards unprincipled way of

          5  funding the criminal justice system and have them

          6  just take the money that's going to be available and

          7  given to them anyway, and put it up in the budget as

          8  a restoration.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         11  Council member.

         12                 Council Member Sears.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chair.

         15                 My question is, the Department of

         16  Homeless Services, can you tell me what is affected

         17  by that cut and that none of it is reinstated? It's

         18  over $8 million.

         19                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes. This is basically a

         20  funding shift. They have gotten more federal and

         21  state dollars then. So, that allowed them to reduce

         22  the same amount on the tax levy side. It's from

         23  Family Shelters Program.

         24                 The Department of Homeless Services

         25  have done better than expected in signing up
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          2  families going into the homeless shelter on public

          3  assistance. They are able to get additional federal

          4  and state dollars then.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Oh, that's

          6  fine.

          7                 MS. EMANUEL: That's what that is.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         10  Koppell.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         12                 I'm looking at the budget

         13  modifications on revenue and there's some

         14  interesting questions.

         15                 First of all, to just understand,

         16  this Exhibit B that's attached to the submission

         17  that comes from the Finance Division, who prepared

         18  that Exhibit B?

         19                 MR. TRAMONTANO: I did.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And where did

         21  you get the numbers?

         22                 MR. TRAMONTANO: The information comes

         23  from OMB.

         24                 All the additional money in this

         25  modification reflects additions in the January Plan.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Additions and

          3  subtractions, right?

          4                 MR. TRAMONTANO: And subtractions,

          5  yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Looking at

          7  the first page of Exhibit B, the numbers that are

          8  positive represent increases in revenues from those

          9  sources, right?

         10                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And these

         12  monies are monies that we are in this modification,

         13  if you will, recognizing as part of the budget?

         14                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And then

         16  we're appropriating these monies as part of the

         17  budget, most of the monies going into I guess a

         18  stabilization fund to be used for next year?

         19                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But there's

         21  no doubt that these monies are being appropriated by

         22  us.

         23                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, it's

         25  interesting for me to see, and I guess the OMB gave
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          2  you under revenue source 110 an increase in pilots

          3  of $40 million.

          4                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, OMB is

          6  recognizing that pilots are part of our budget

          7  appropriation authority, right?

          8                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That is correct. They

          9  have identified this much in pilot money to go into

         10  the general fund.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But isn't

         12  that interesting, given the legislation we were

         13  discussing yesterday that they're recognizing that

         14  these pilots do get appropriated.

         15                 MR. TRAMONTANO: There are two

         16  separate issues. There are some that the City does

         17  recognize, and the issue is whether future increases

         18  in pilot revenue are going to be recognized into the

         19  general fund, or will they be kept separate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But the point

         21  I am trying to make here is that the City clearly is

         22  recognizing that pilots are not outside the City

         23  budget process. I think it's a very important point

         24  in respect to what we discussed yesterday.

         25                 MR. TRAMONTANO: In the case of these
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          2  pilots that are directed into the general fund --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Is there any

          4  distinction between these pilots and other pilots,

          5  in terms of the nature of them?

          6                 MR. TRAMONTANO: I believe that's the

          7  issue of the legislation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That may or

          9  may not be the issue of the legislation. But I'm

         10  asking you whether there's any difference, that you

         11  know of.

         12                 MS. ANGELO: As a rule of thumb, the

         13  pilots that have always come into the City's budget

         14  on a regular basis have tended to be payments in

         15  lieu of taxes coming from governmental or quasi

         16  governmental authority.

         17                 So, for example, Battery Park City,

         18  the World Trade Center paid a pilot, that was where

         19  -- NYCHA will pay a pilot. So, the payments in lieu

         20  of taxes that were always in the budget tended to

         21  come from those governmental or public authorities,

         22  that might otherwise have been tax exempt by law.

         23                 I believe the subject matter of the

         24  legislation are pilots whose, pilots that originate

         25  in a tax rate offered by the Economic Development
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          2  Corporation or the Industrial Development Agency.

          3                 That's the only distinction I believe

          4  exists.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm not sure

          6  that distinction makes a difference, but I think

          7  it's worth observing.

          8                 MS. ANGELA: It may indeed be a

          9  distinction without a difference.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes. And I'm

         11  not even sure in terms of the construct of the west

         12  side stadium financing that an authority is not

         13  going to be involved, but, you know, so I'm not sure

         14  that it even makes a difference there.

         15                 But I think it's important, just

         16  since where this is a subject of current discussion,

         17  to point out that pilots are dealt with as part of

         18  our revenue stream.

         19                 I'm interested, or a little bit

         20  curious, as to where there is an explanation why the

         21  lien sale number is considerably less than the

         22  estimate, the $54 million, is there a reason for

         23  that?

         24                 MR. TRAMONTANO: It's actually just a

         25  delay in the lien sale from Fiscal '05 to Fiscal
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          2  '06. The sale is anticipated to happen next fiscal

          3  year.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, it's not

          5  that there has been some drastic fall-off?

          6                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

          8                 And then, I was interested to see

          9  that there's an item of recognized additional income

         10  of $80 million on taxi medallions; did that sale

         11  produce $80 million more than anticipated, or is

         12  that also just a timing issue? On the next page?

         13                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Actually, there is a

         14  budget category called miscellaneous miscellaneous,

         15  which catches all actions that do not have their own

         16  unique revenue source.

         17                 So, the taxi medallion is the largest

         18  item in that category, but that is $30 million. And

         19  that is an additional $30 million from the sale that

         20  occurred this summer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But it says

         22  $80 million.

         23                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Yes. If you read it,

         24  it says additional taxi medallion revenue and then

         25  there's a slash, miscellaneous.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Oh, I see. I

          3  see. It's more than just the taxi revenues.

          4                 MR. TRAMONTANO: There's actually a

          5  total of almost 200 separate actions.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I see.

          7                 MR. TRAMONTANO: And we have to group

          8  them up, otherwise they become unwieldy.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But the taxi

         10  medallion sale did realize 30 million more than

         11  anticipated?

         12                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That's

         14  interesting to note.

         15                 Shifting for a moment to the capital

         16  budget adjustment. The 1.3 billion that the City is

         17  appropriating, it is doing that with the, at least

         18  in the memo it says, and I assume it says somewhere

         19  also in the budget modification, the expectation

         20  that the state is going to increase it's capital

         21  appropriation from 1.3 billion in each of the next

         22  four years, to make up the 1.3 billion we didn't get

         23  in the current fiscal year; is that correct?

         24                 MR. ZANGERLE: That's correct. And the

         25  numbers are 500 million in '06 of City dollars
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          2  moving up, 400 in '07, 300 in '08 and 100 in '09,

          3  and those are the same amounts that are being

          4  increased for the State portion in those years.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, the

          6  anticipation is that in the Fiscal Year '06, which

          7  is the one we're approaching now, that the State

          8  will provide 1.8 billion in capital funds for school

          9  construction, correct?

         10                 MR. ZANGERLE: That's correct. And the

         11  City portion will only be 800.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And this,

         13  there are in this fiscal year, aside from other

         14  capital funds which were not reflected in this

         15  projection, the State is providing no capital funds;

         16  is that correct?

         17                 The capital funds the State is

         18  providing, they may be providing some other capital

         19  funds, but in terms of the 1.3 billion to fund the

         20  five-year plan in this fiscal year, the one ending

         21  June 30th, the State has provided no capital funds.

         22                 MR. ZANGERLE: That's correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And the City

         24  is making up the total amount.

         25                 MR. ZANGERLE: That's correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, it's zero

          3  for this year '05 that the State is providing in

          4  capital funds.

          5                 MR. ZANGERLE: That's correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

          7                 And next year the anticipation is

          8  that they will provide 1.8 billion in capital funds?

          9                 MR. ZANGERLE: That's correct. Fiscal

         10  year begins July 1.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Is there any

         12  indication because the State is in the process of

         13  adopting its budget for at least the first nine

         14  months of our next fiscal year, because their fiscal

         15  year is in April 1, March 30th year, is there any

         16  indication that that 1.8 billion is forthcoming in

         17  the current negotiations; have you heard anything

         18  about that?

         19                 MR. ZANGERLE: Not in anything I've

         20  seen.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

         22                 Is there any number that you've seen

         23  that would be counted toward the 1.8 billion?

         24                 MR. ZANGERLE: The Governor has

         25  proposed some measures of changing building aid, but
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          2  that building aid only comes on our operating side.

          3  So, I mean, we haven't seen anything on the capital

          4  side.

          5                 There might be some relief on

          6  operating, but we haven't seen any attempt to put

          7  more capital.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, one would

          9  have to say that's pretty optimistic assumption, the

         10  1.8 billion for the next fiscal year?

         11                 MR. ZANGERLE: I would certainly

         12  categorize it that way, yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

         14                 And I think that, you know, it's

         15  difficult, this is a proposal of the Mayor, this

         16  modification, correct?

         17                 MR. ZANGERLE: That's correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I just would

         19  observe that while certainly it would be a good

         20  thing if it occurred, I would like to see a little

         21  bit more energy expended on it happening, that is by

         22  pressure placed on the State generally.

         23                 Of course, we may wait for the courts

         24  to do that, but we should be doing it as well. And I

         25  think it's important for us to point that out at

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  every point when we can that we're assuming that the

          3  State is going to come up with this 1.8 billion in

          4  the next year and similar amounts in the three years

          5  following.

          6                 MR. ZANGERLE: Not only are we

          7  assuming it, we'll probably be voting on it

          8  something in the adoption of the Fiscal '06 capital

          9  budget.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: We'll be

         11  voting on the expectation, but we can't vote on the

         12  money, right? Unfortunately.

         13                 MR. ZANGERLE: That's correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, thank

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         17  Council Member.

         18                 Council Member Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. Two

         20  quick things. One, I just want to confirm that the

         21  implications for the Department of Health and Mental

         22  Hygiene in the budget modification are all service

         23  neutral on the public health side, and that there is

         24  no negative impact to services.

         25                 MS. EMANUEL: No. No negative impact.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          3                 And I know earlier when I was in Land

          4  Use there was a discussion raised by Council Member

          5  Dilan about enhancing and expanding the capital

          6  staff of the Council at some point to help deal with

          7  scope, oversight, et cetera, and I just wanted to

          8  add my voice to those that would like to move that

          9  issue forward at some point in an upcoming

         10  institutional budget, because I think particularly

         11  given our new powers that they relate to the

         12  Department of Education, it is very important that

         13  we have the resources we need to stay on top of

         14  projects and really understand them to make sure

         15  that they come to fruition.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         18  Council Member. I'm in agreement with that.

         19                 Council Member McMahon.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chairman. And I also, it's obvious that those

         22  who work at the City Council Finance Division need

         23  to get paid a lot more money than those that we

         24  already have, we agree --

         25                 MS. ANGELO: Are you making that
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          2  statement on the basis of our suits?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: No. For all

          4  the hard work you do. We appreciate it.

          5                 I just wanted to make sure,

          6  understand what we're doing here. We're recognizing

          7  $1.2 billion in increased revenue as of what was

          8  projected from last year, what we now have, correct?

          9                 MS. ANGELO: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: That number

         11  1.2 billion, is that the Administration's number?

         12                 MS. ANGELO: Correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Is it

         14  different than our number or the IBO's numbers?

         15                 MS. ANGELO: What it basically does is

         16  recognize. It's essentially the Administration's

         17  estimate, but given the fact that it's fairly late

         18  in the year, what you're looking at is basically

         19  money in the bank.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But how does

         21  it compare to our estimate or the IBO's estimate?

         22                 MS. ANGELO: Right now we're running

         23  our revenue estimate, so we're not quite done. But

         24  both Council Finance, NIBO, and, in fact, most of

         25  the fiscal monitors see potential upside.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: To what

          3  number?

          4                 MS. ANGELO: To revenues.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: To what

          6  extent upside?

          7                 MS. ANGELO: Substantial.

          8                 I mean, it's not quite clear yet. You

          9  have to remember that March is a big month for the

         10  business taxes, and we don't have the march money in

         11  yet, and it will be a large month for the personal

         12  income tax and that hasn't happened yet.

         13                 And then June once again will be a

         14  big month for the business taxes.

         15                 So, at this point, although it's late

         16  in the year, we have three very big months coming

         17  up.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: IBO issued

         19  some numbers, $2 billion I thought I read, or no?

         20  And didn't you guys? You can't give me any

         21  estimates?

         22                 MS. ANGELO: We're not done running

         23  the revenue forecast yet.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Has IBO given

         25  its number?
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          2                 MS. ANGELO: Actually, we don't have

          3  it with us, but we'll get back to you on that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay.

          5                 And just I know this was being asked

          6  as we moved over from Land Use, why are we paying

          7  the money out of that increased revenue for the '06

          8  budget for HHC and MTA?

          9                 MS. ANGELO: Well, most of the

         10  additional revenue is going to be used to help

         11  balance the budget in '06, and because of the

         12  constraints of the financial control act, there are

         13  only certain things you can do to roll extra money.

         14                 Some of it is the budget

         15  stabilization count where you prepay debt service

         16  for next year, but there are certain categories of

         17  subsidies you're allowed to prepay, Transit is one

         18  of them and HHC is another.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Is this done

         20  every year when there is an increase in revenue as

         21  was projected?

         22                 MS. ANGELO: Yes. I mean, every year

         23  monies roll from one year to another, and the exact

         24  format in which it is rolled depends on, mostly on

         25  how large the roll is.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But just

          3  explain that to me one more time, why Transit and

          4  HHC can be prepaid? Who set that, the Financial

          5  Control Act?

          6                 MS. ANGELO: It's basically Financial

          7  Control Act, as per an accounting category.

          8                 MR. ZANGERLE: It's more of an

          9  accounting nature, being that it's a subsidy that

         10  doesn't pay for specific services. Being a subsidy

         11  it can be paid prior to the year beginning. If it

         12  was paying for actual services, it would be

         13  prohibited to do that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well, here is

         15  my concern, and maybe you can allay my fears or my

         16  concerns, if you will. We're in a very quick action

         17  appropriating $300 million for next year's budget,

         18  without the normal hearings, without the normal

         19  budget action, so we're doing something very

         20  substantial to effect the '06 budget kind of quickly

         21  here without all of the things that we usually do.

         22  So, tell me why it is that we're doing that.

         23                 MR. ZANGERLE: It's still a plan. Just

         24  because we put it in a category in Fiscal Year '05

         25  to be spent, to HHC and Transit, it won't happen
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          2  until the end of the year. And it will happen

          3  simultaneously with the adoption of the budget. The

          4  actual check won't be written until June 30th.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, we're

          6  setting the money aside now, if you will, but they

          7  can't use it, have access to it, or spend it until

          8  we pass the overall budget for '06.

          9                 MR. ZANGERLE: That's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Is that

         11  correct?

         12                 MR. ZANGERLE: That's correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, it's in

         14  effect a marker, but it will still go through the

         15  normal budget process like everything else into '06?

         16                 MS. ANGELO: Yes, it's essentially

         17  sitting in a unit of appropriation.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         21  Lopez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I guess for the

         23  purpose of the record I want a clarification in

         24  regard of a mental health, mental retardation,

         25  alcoholism and substance abuse and disability
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          2  service committee, in regard of the reduction in

          3  there; can you please explain that, the changes on

          4  early childhood education, as connected to that it's

          5  my understanding?

          6                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes, hold on. Let me get

          7  the page.

          8                 This is early intervention programs,

          9  and basically what's happening here is that the City

         10  or the Office of Management and Budget overestimated

         11  the growth, the level of growth in that program.

         12  They had factored in seven and a half percent

         13  growth, it's only actually three percent, so there

         14  is a surplus there, so it's just a re-estimate.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I want to

         16  understand why they overestimated that, and what is

         17  the explanation for it that ground in the reduction?

         18  I want to know if it's because they didn't conduct

         19  enough pre-tests for children? What is the

         20  explanation for it?

         21                 MS. EMANUEL: I guess we would have to

         22  get back to you. I would think they would look at

         23  expenditures in trends over the last couple of years

         24  and kind of making a projection and now they're just

         25  adjusting that projection.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, the

          3  reason I'm asking this question on the record is

          4  because during the hearings Dr. Frieden was not able

          5  to explain that to me either, and I continue to look

          6  into this matter, because I know, for example, that

          7  we're having an increase of children poisoned by

          8  lead. And we know that one of the reasons that that

          9  is happening, it had to do with the air bridge that

         10  we have between certain communities of immigrants

         11  that come to our country, particularly to our City,

         12  and I am curious to know why the Department cannot

         13  have an answer to this. I wanted to know if you were

         14  able to solicit any more information in regard to

         15  this than what I was able to get in the hearings.

         16                 MR. BRUNO: Peter Bruno, Assistant

         17  Director for Health and Human Services.

         18                 Early Intervention Program had been

         19  growing at a very rapid rate over the last several

         20  years. They baselined that growth at about seven and

         21  a half percent. It did begin to slow down in the

         22  last two years, and the reasons that the

         23  Commissioner testified to were that they were

         24  standardizing the evaluations at the front end of

         25  the system, and that that was leading to basically a
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          2  flat growth from that point forward.

          3                 In addition, they were doing a more

          4  standardized review at six months and one year with

          5  the therapists who were involved.

          6                 The other point that the Commissioner

          7  made is they were transferring services to

          8  under-utilized areas, such as in East Harlem is one

          9  he cited, but they were hoping to move more services

         10  in that direction.

         11                 And as far as the tie to the lead, he

         12  did not clarify that beyond what he gave at the

         13  testimony.

         14                 So, in essence, they overestimated

         15  based on prior expenses. It seems to be leveling

         16  off. Some of that has to do with policy changes

         17  which he has discussed, such as those evaluations.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And I want to

         19  call the attention to the Council to that, that in

         20  the change of policy, you can change an entire

         21  budget and not based on the needs in the regard of

         22  early childhood intervention. I want the Council

         23  members to understand that that have been an item in

         24  dispute between the Chair of that Committee, meaning

         25  me, and the Department in which the policy about
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          2  changing the dollars, allocated for early childhood

          3  intervention had nothing to do with the services,

          4  but everything to do with policy changes about

          5  relocation of these dollars, changing the hands who

          6  receive it in terms of the agencies that have been

          7  implementing this kind of program, and I am

          8  concerned about this budget modification in that

          9  context, I am in disagreement with it, and I have

         10  not received the appropriate information necessary

         11  to justify this information that is part of this

         12  budget modification.

         13                 I want to make note on the record

         14  that I do not believe that this is appropriate and

         15  adequate.

         16                 MR. BRUNO: If I could just add, in

         17  addition there is a change in recognition of

         18  Medicaid revenues for early intervention. They had

         19  budgeted 38 percent of their revenue coming from

         20  Medicaid, it is in fact 45 percent. They have not

         21  given us the breakout of the savings attributable to

         22  that and the amount attributable to the leveling off

         23  of the program. And I would just add that in '06, we

         24  have an opportunity in the Executive hearing to

         25  further review the early intervention program going

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  forward.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

          4                 I just want to call the attention to

          5  all of the members of the Council, because this

          6  program is utilized by each and every one of us, and

          7  the children who are affected by this issue are all

          8  the children that eventually become diagnosed with

          9  different developmental disabled problems, and this

         10  is an area where we are confronting a problem in the

         11  nation and in the City, particularly connected to

         12  lead poisoning, and to the question of the increase

         13  of autism in our nation due to a particular vaccine

         14  that was being used that contained mercury on it.

         15                 I just want that to be reflected on

         16  the record, and I thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm going to call

         18  for a vote now. I'm going to couple Intro. 578,

         19  which is the increase in the BID in the special

         20  assessment district, and preconsidered M 446 and

         21  Resolution 893. Preconsidered M 447 and Resolution

         22  894. Preconsidered M 448 and Resolution 895.

         23  Preconsidered M 449 and Resolution 896.

         24  Preconsidered M 455 and Resolution 897. And

         25  preconsidered M 456 and resolution 898. Please read
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          2  the roll.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Weprin.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye on all.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Permission to

         15  explain my vote?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So granted.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I would like

         18  to be added to Intro. 578, as it concerns the

         19  Jamaica BID assessment district. I was in a land use

         20  meeting and I had a short meeting with the Speaker.

         21                 Quiet, please.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. We'll add

         23  your name. And just make sure you sign the sheet at

         24  the meeting.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'll make
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          2  sure. But I just wanted staff to know that this has

          3  been, I am aware that it's been 12 years since their

          4  assessment has been increased and I'm fully in favor

          5  of it. I see Ms. Barkan here, and I want to just

          6  congratulate her publicly for all of the strong work

          7  that she does with the Jamaica Assessment BID in

          8  that Jamaica area. And it's part of their overall

          9  plan to try to do the street lighting and the other

         10  necessary improvements to continue to enhance the

         11  Jamaica downtown area. So, I vote aye on all. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         14                 Fidler.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye on all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Yes on all.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye on all.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Please sign the

          5  Committee report.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: He's not in the

          8  room.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 14 in the

         10  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         11  abstentions, all items are adopted.

         12                 Council Members, please sign the

         13  Committee report.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. I'm going

         16  to keep the roll open for a reasonable period of

         17  time.

         18                 Councilman Gennaro specifically asked

         19  to keep the roll open because he had to take care of

         20  a family matter and is expected shortly.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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